BYLAWS OF THE SEWANEE CIVIC ASSOCIATION

Article I – Name

The name of the organization shall be the Sewanee Civic Association (SCA).

Article II – Purpose

The purpose of the SCA is to foster a well informed, harmonious and dynamic greater Sewanee community by providing a forum for community issues and social interaction, by managing the Sewanee Community Chest and the Sewanee Classifieds, and by sponsoring projects deemed by the membership to be beneficial to the community. SCA is the sponsoring organization of Cub Scout Pack 152.

Article III – Members

SECTION 1. Membership.

Membership in this organization shall be made available without regard to race, color, sex, creed, or national origin. All persons interested in the concerns of the greater Sewanee community are encouraged to join.

SECTION 2. Eligibility.

Persons become members upon payment of annual dues. An active member is a member who has physically attended at least one meeting in the past 12 months and paid the annual dues. All active members are eligible to vote.

SECTION 3. The Executive Board of Directors shall establish the dues and benefits of membership.

Article IV – Officers and Elections

SECTION 1. Officers and directors.

The officers shall be a president, vice president, secretary, and treasurer.

- A. President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the Association and at all meetings of the Board of directors. The president shall appoint all committees unless otherwise provided by the resolution creating the same or by the bylaws. The president shall be the executive head of the Association and charged with the duty of seeing that the objects and purposes of the Association are carried out.
- B. Vice President. The vice-president shall act as chair of the program committee and assume the powers and duties of the president in the president's absence. The vice-president shall succeed the president:
- C. Secretary. The secretary shall keep a complete record of the minutes of the Association, keep an accurate roster of all members of the Association, give notice of the meetings of the Association and keep a record of attendance at all meetings of the SCA. The secretary shall attend to all correspondence of the Association and perform all other duties ordinarily pertaining to the office.
- D. Treasurer. The treasurer shall have the care and custody of all funds and securities of the SCA, except as otherwise provided. Treasurer shall collect all dues and other monies payable to the Association, and make all payments as directed by the Board of directors. The treasurer and/or the president shall sign checks issued by the SCA. Said funds and securities shall be kept on deposit in the name of the Sewanee Civic Association in a bank designated by the Board of directors. The treasurer shall present a financial statement at each meeting of the Association and as requested by the president. The Board shall secure the services of an independent auditor or auditing committee to annually regularly review the finances of the Civic Association.

The Board of Directors shall consist of the four officers above named ex officio, the immediate past President of the Association, the Director of the Sewanee Classifieds, the Director of Parks, and a Member at Large.

SECTION 2. Tenure

Directors shall serve a term of one year from the date of their election. A full term shall be considered to have been served upon the passage of one annual meeting. Directors shall take office immediately following the close of the annual meeting at which they are elected. No Director shall serve more than three (3) consecutive terms. Fulfilling an incomplete term is not considered part of the term limit. Directors can serve staggered terms to balance continuity with new perspective.

SECTION 3. Nominations and Elections.

The Board of Directors will serve as the Nominating Committee. Nominations for the next year's officers may be submitted to the Board from January 1 until the meeting prior to the annual meeting.

The officers and the member at large of the Association shall be elected at the annual meeting.

The president The Executive Board shall appoint the Director of Sewanee Classifieds and Director of Parks. Officers and directors shall take office at the conclusion of the annual meeting and shall hold office for one year or until successors are elected. Each person elected shall hold only one office at a time. The Executive Board shall appoint a Classifieds Committee at its discretion from the active membership. The remaining members of the Executive Board shall fill a vacancy in the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4. Presidential Succession

In cases of temporary absence, the succession shall be Vice President, Treasurer, and then Secretary. In the event that the elected President is unable to fulfill his/her term, the Vice President shall become President. The Vice President position shall not automatically succeed to the President. Any active member shall be a candidate for President.

SECTION 5. Removal From Office.

Officers can be removed from office with or without cause by a two-thirds vote of those present (assuming a quorum) at a regular meeting of the active membership where previous notice has been given.

Article V - Meetings

SECTION 1. The annual meeting of the Association shall be held in the Spring. The Board shall produce and submit an annual report for review by membership at least 30 days prior to the annual meeting, and this shall have a proposed budget for the following year.

SECTION 2. There shall be a minimum of four regular meetings per year.

SECTION 3. Special meetings of the Association may be called at any time by the president, the Executive Board of Directors or by one-third of the active members.

SECTION 4. Regular Association meetings shall be announced within at least three days of the meeting.

SECTION 5. Quorum.

Four members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum. Voting is by two-thirds majority of active members present unless otherwise specified in these Bylaws.

SECTION 6. Email Voting

- 1. In rare instances, board actions may be taken by email by an affirmative vote of at least two thirds of the officers currently in office.
- 2. If an item for board action is best addressed before the next board meeting, the following factors will be considered by the president before determining whether to ask for an action by email:
 - (a) How soon a decision is required.
 - (b) Whether the decision would be better made after further discussion and/or whether alternatives should be considered.
 - (c) Whether all officers have sufficient information to make an informed decision.
- 3. If after considering the above factors, the president determines it would be best to take the action by email, the president will email the proposed action to all officers at their respective email addresses.
- 4. The emailed proposal does not require that an officer declare that he or she is making the motion or for another officer to declare a second to the motion.
- 5. The email shall request that each officer vote by email reply to all officers that he or she:
 - (a) is in favor of the proposed action or
 - (b) is opposed to the proposed action or
 - (c) requires additional information or discussion before casting a vote.

- 6. If the action is approved by affirmative vote of at least two thirds of the officers currently in office, all officers shall be sent immediate notice of the approval including the text of the proposed action and its effective date and time.
- 7. At the first board meeting following the email vote, all officers present will be asked to sign a document containing both the proposed action and a list of directors' votes to confirm the email votes.
- 8. The proposed action and the list of votes shall be entered into the minutes of the next board meeting. The signed resolution will be retained with the minutes of the meeting.

Article VI - Executive Board

SECTION 1. Membership.

The Executive Board of Directors of the Association shall be six in number and consist of the four officers above named ex officio, the immediate past President of the Association, the Director of the Sewance Classifieds, and a Member at Large.

SECTION 2. Duties.

The duties of the Executive Board shall be to transact business between meetings in preparation for the general meeting, create standing rules and policies, create standing and temporary committees, prepare and submit a budget to the membership, approve routine bills, and prepare reports and recommendations to the membership.

SECTION 3. Quorum.

Four members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum.

Article VII – Committees

SECTION 1. The Board of Directors shall discuss and approve the appointment of such other committees as may be necessary to realize the objectives of the Association.

SECTION 2. Membership. Committees may consist of active members and Board members, with the president acting as an ex officio member of all committees.

SECTION 3. Standing Committees. The following committees shall be held by the organization: Community Chest, Classifieds, Parks, Audit, Investment, and sponsor of the Cub Scout Pack 152.

SECTION 4. Additional Committees. The Board may appoint additional committees as needed.

Article VIII - Finances

- SECTION 1. A budget shall be presented in the fall annual meeting for each year and approved by a two-thirds majority vote of the active members present.
- SECTION 2. The treasurer shall keep accurate records of any disbursements, income, and bank account information.
- SECTION 3. The Board of Directors shall approve all expenses of the organization.
- SECTION 4. Two authorized signatures shall be required on each check over the amount of \$500. Authorized signers shall be the president and treasurer.
- SECTION 5. The treasurer shall prepare a financial statement at the end of the year, to be reviewed by the Audit Committee.
- SECTION 6. Upon the dissolution of the organization, any remaining funds should be used to pay any outstanding bills and, with the membership's approval, spent for the benefit of the community.
- SECTION 7. The fiscal year shall be August 31, previous year through September 1, next year.

Article IX - The Community Chest

SECTION 1. The purpose of the Sewanee Community Chest campaign is to raise funds for local organizations that serve the common good. An important function of the campaign is to minimize the need for excessive area fundraising by many groups; therefore, organizations receiving funds are expected to acknowledge support from the Sewanee Community Chest in other area fundraising efforts.

The Sewanee Community Chest does not allocate funds to those organizations that discriminate on the basis of race, creed, sex, or national origin.

SECTION 2. Each fall the Board of Directors shall conduct the Sewanee Community Chest fund solicitation for the following calendar year. The Board is responsible for managing the solicitation, collection, and disbursement of all community chest funds. It is expected that the major solicitation will have been made before December 15 and that the majority of funds will have been received by June 1.

SECTION 3. The president shall nominate a Community Chest treasurer to be approved by the Board.

- A. The Community Chest treasurer shall have custody of all funds and financial papers of the Community Chest. The treasurer shall collect, record and deposit donations, keep a full and accurate account of receipts and expenditures, and disburse funds as approved by the executive Board and active membership.
- B. A member of the executive Board shall meet with the Community Chest treasurer at least once a month to discuss Community Chest matters.
- C. The Community Chest treasurer shall provide a financial statement for every regular meeting of the Association. Upon request, a full report shall be made available to the Board within five working days.
- D. The Community Chest treasurer is responsible for filing the appropriate Federal and State tax returns in a timely matter.
- E. The Community Chest treasurer may be paid for work at the discretion of the executive Board.

SECTION 4. The president The Executive Board of Directors shall appoint at least two Community Chest Stewards who will work with the Board on campaign marketing ideas, soliciting donations, creating tax receipts and performing other duties as needed.

SECTION 5. The president The Executive Board of Directors shall appoint a financial specialist to head an Investments Committee that will oversee the Opportunity Fund investments and provide quarterly reports to the Board.

SECTION 6. Disbursement of funds. The Executive Board will publish a grant policies and procedures document that will be reviewed annually by the membership. In principle, this document shall ensure accountability on the part of all those organizations receiving funding. Applicants for grants will make formal requests, including the purpose of the grant and the timeline for spending the grant. At the conclusion of the grant period, grantees will provide reports as specified in the grant policies and procedures document. Grantees that do not report on the use of the funds will not be eligible for new grants.

Article X – Parliamentary Authority

Robert's Rules of Order shall govern meetings when they are not in conflict with the organization's bylaws.

Article XI – Standing Rules

The Executive Board may approve standing rules, and the secretary shall keep a record of the standing rules for future reference.

Article XII - Dissolution

The organization may be dissolved with previous notice (14 calendar days) and a two-thirds vote of those present at the meeting.

Article XIII – Amendments

Amendments to these bylaws may be proposed at any meeting of the Association and shall be acted upon at the following meeting where the amendment may become a bylaw with a two-thirds vote of those present.

Article XIV - Conflict of Interest Policy

The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect this tax-exempt organization's interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the organization or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.

SECTION 2. Definitions.

- A. Interested Person. Any director, principal officer, or member of a committee with governing Board-delegated powers who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an interested person.
- B. Financial Interest. A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family:
 - i. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the organization has a transaction or arrangement;
 - ii. A compensation arrangement with the organization or with any entity or individual with which the organization has a transaction or arrangement; or
 - iii. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the organization is negotiating a transaction or arrangement. "Compensation" includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not insubstantial.

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Section 3b, a person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate governing Board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists.

SECTION 3. Procedures.

- A. Duty to Disclose. In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors and members of committees with governing Board-delegated powers who are considering the proposed transaction or arrangement.
- B. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists. After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the interested person, he/she shall leave the governing Board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining Board or committee members shall decide whether a conflict of interest exists.
- C. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest.
 - i. An interested person may make a presentation at the governing Board or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.
 - ii. The chairperson of the governing Board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.
 - iii. After exercising due diligence, the governing Board or committee shall determine whether the organization can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.
 - iv. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing Board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the organization's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination, it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.
- D. Violations of the Conflict of Interest Policy.
 - i. If the governing Board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.
 - ii. If, after hearing the member's response and after making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the governing Board or committee determines that the member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

SECTION 4. Records of Proceedings.

The minutes of the governing Board and all committees with Board delegated powers shall contain

- A. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest; the nature of the financial interest; any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present; and the governing Board's or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.
- B. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement; the content of the discussion; including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or

arrangement; and a record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.

SECTION 5. Compensation.

- A. A voting member of the governing Board who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the organization for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.
- B. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the organization for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.
- C. No voting member of the governing Board or any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the organization, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee regarding compensation.

SECTION 6. Annual Statements.

Each director, principal officer, and member of a committee with governing Board-delegated powers shall annually sign a statement, which affirms that such person:

- Has received a copy of the conflict of interest policy;
- Has read and understood the policy;
- Has agreed to comply with the policy; and
- Understands that the organization is charitable and that in order to maintain its federal taxexempt status it must engage primarily in activities, which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

SECTION 7. Periodic Reviews.

To ensure that the organization operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects:

- A. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, are based on competent survey information, and are the result of arm's length bargaining.
- B. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management organizations conform to the organization's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes, and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit, or an excess benefit transaction.

SECTION 8. Use of Outside Experts.

When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in Section 7, the organization may, but need not, use outside advisers. If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the governing Board of its responsibility for ensuring that periodic reviews are conducted.

Article XV - The Sewanee Classifieds

SECTION 1. The purpose of the Sewanee Classifieds is to foster a well-informed, harmonious, and dynamic greater Sewanee community by providing an email forum. This website is open to all community members, and hosts two email distribution lists: a yearly subscription to the Sewanee Classifieds, and Announcements Only (free).

SECTION 2. The SCA charges a small annual fee to subscribe to the Sewanee Classifieds. A small annual fee of \$10 per person (email) is required to participate in the Sewanee Classifieds. Membership to the Association provides for complementary membership to the Sewanee Classifieds. Membership to Classifieds will be deleted if payment is not received on a yearly basis from current members. For new members, payment is required before Classifieds will be activated.

SECTION 3. The Board shall nominate a Director of Classifieds to be approved by two-thirds of the active membership at the annual meeting. The board shall appoint a Classifieds Committee at its discretion from the active membership.

- F. The Director of Classifieds and the SCA treasurer shall have custody of all funds and financial papers of the Sewanee Classifieds. The treasurer shall collect, record and deposit fees, keep a full and accurate account of receipts and expenditures, and disburse funds as approved by the executive board and active membership.
- G. The SCA treasurer shall provide a financial statement for every regular meeting of the Association. Upon request, a full report shall be made available to the board within five working days.
- H. The SCA treasurer is responsible for filing the appropriate Federal and State tax returns in a timely matter.

- I. The Director of Classifieds is responsible for maintaining the website making the membership as current as possible.
- J. The Director of Classifieds shall send to classifieds membership notices of fees due, and at the discretion of the SCA board and/or appointed committee when violations of policies have been executed.
- K. The Director of Classifieds, SCA board and/or appointed committee shall make sure the Acceptable Use Policy is being followed by Sewanee Classifieds members.

SECTION 4. Sewanee Classifieds members shall adhere to the Acceptable Use Policy (Appendix 1). Violation of the policies may result in warnings, suspensions, or termination of the user's account.

- A. Violations of the email distribution lists and acceptable use policy shall be determined by the Director of Classifieds, SCA board and/or appointed committee with notice being given to the Director of Classifieds, SCA board and/or appointed committee.
- B. Warnings, suspensions, or termination of the user's account will be handled by the Director of Classifieds, SCA board and/or appointed committee. Action may be taken with approval from the Director of Classifieds, SCA board and/or appointed committee.
- C. Communication to the Director of Classifieds, SCA board and/or appointed committee of warnings, suspensions or termination of the user's account may be handled through emails, phone calls, meetings, or letters.
- D. Classifieds members found to be in violation of the Acceptable Use Policy will be notified by email.

Article XVI - The Investment Committee

SECTION 1. The purpose of the Investment Committee is to oversee the Sewanee Civic Association Community Chest Opportunity Fund.

SECTION 2. The Board shall appoint a financial specialist to head an Investments Committee that will oversee the Opportunity Fund investments and provide quarterly reports to the Board.

SECTION 3. The Sewanee Civic Association Community Chest Opportunity Fund was created in 2009 out of the Community Chest budgetary surplus. Ninety percent of the surplus was placed into an endowment fund and 10 percent was designated in a reserve fund.

- A. Any future surpluses will be rolled into this fund and distributed likewise, according to the 90/10 percent model. The interest from the endowment fund will be re-invested into the fund as an annual gift.
- B. The opportunity fund cannot be divested unless there is a two-thirds vote of the active membership present at a regular meeting. Notice of a proposed vote regarding a potential divestment of the Opportunity Fund should be made public at least two weeks prior to the date of the vote.
- C. A standing Opportunity Fund Committee will be appointed by the Board and will meet no less than yearly.
- D. Portfolio that generates 4.5 percent income with an edge to a conservative risk tolerance.

Article XVII - Parks

SECTION 1. The purpose of the Parks Committee is to provide a monitoring structure for public parks in Sewanee. (Appendix 2.)

SECTION 2. The Executive Board shall appoint a Director Parks and a Parks Committee to be approved by two-thirds of the active membership at the annual meeting.

- A. The Parks Director shall report on the activities of the Parks Committee to the active membership at least quarterly.
- B. Park activities, initiatives, decisions, or budgets of the Parks Committee shall be approved by two-thirds of the active membership.

Appendix 1 Classifieds

Sewanee Civic Communications Web Page

About this group

This Sewanee Civic Association website is open to all community members and hosts two email distribution lists - Sewanee Classifieds (yearly subscription) and Announcements Only (free). By requesting to join, you are agreeing to the policies set forth by the Sewanee Civic Association and understand that any infringement of these policies could result in suspension or permanent removal from the group.

When requesting to join, please provide your name and briefly state your connection to Sewanee. Choose only one group: Classifieds or Announcements Only. All announcements that are sent to the Announcements Only group will be posted in Classifieds so select ONLY ONE group. There is a small annual fee to subscribe to the Classifieds and please indicate that you agree to pay this yearly fee. The Acceptable Use Policy can be read here: http://groupspaces.com/Sewanee/pages/acceptable-use-policy

Membership and Payment

Sewanee Classifieds Yearly Membership - \$10.00

Subscription to the Sewanee Classifieds is \$10 per year and must be renewed annually. The program is email based. Payments should be made using the email address used for posting and receiving Classifieds. An annual reminder will be sent along with a grace period. Payment may be made via PayPal or mailed to: SCA, PO Box 222, Sewanee TN 37375. If payment is not received by at the conclusion of each individual's yearly membership, individuals will be contacted before any account is deleted. Thank you for supporting the Sewanee Classifieds and Civic Association. Announcements will remain free.

There is a two-step process to activate the service:

- 1. To join either Classifieds or Announcements Only, individuals must request to Join. You must become a member of the Sewanee Civic Communications group to receive either Classifieds or Announcements Only.
- 2. For Classifieds membership, a subscription must be purchased before approval is granted. Once payment has been received and noted, approval is granted and a welcome letter with posting instructions will be sent.
 - It is important that the same names and email addresses are used for subscriptions as for joining the Classifieds; a delay may occur if these do not match up.
 - There may also be a delay if subscriptions are purchased by sending payment through the mail.

You must still request to Join Group (found at the top of the main web page) in addition to subscribing to and paying for the Classifieds.

Sewanee Classifieds Yearly Membership

A small annual fee of \$10 per person (email) is required to participate in the Sewanee Classifieds. Membership to the Sewanee Classifieds provides for complimentary membership to the Sewanee Civic Association, which sponsors the Classifieds. For new members, payment is required before Classifieds will be activated. This is a recurring subscription that lasts for 1 year from the date of payment. For example, a subscription purchased on March 8, 2014 will expire on March 8, 2015. A courtesy message will be sent prior to the removal of any account.

Acceptable Use Policy

Sewanee Civic Association Acceptable Use Policy

To uphold the quality and reputation of the Civic Association's email lists, your use of the lists is subject to the policy below. If you are found to be in violation of our policy at any time, as determined by the Civic Association in its sole discretion, we may warn you, or suspend or terminate your account.

Prohibited within the Sewanee Classifieds:

- 1. Interference with other users' enjoyment of the distribution lists
- 2. Posting messages of a political nature
- 3. Engagement in prolonged debate or dialogue on any one topic
- 4. More than three weekly for-profit business advertisements
- 5. Negative statements regarding individuals or legitimate businesses
- 6. Public posting of private, offline conversations
- 7. Generate or facilitate unsolicited commercial email ("spam"). Such activity includes, but is not limited to sending email in violation of the CAN-SPAM Act or any other applicable anti-spam law imitating or impersonating another person or his, her or its email address, or creating false accounts for the purpose of sending spam
- 8. Data mining any web property to find email addresses
- 9. Sending unauthorized mail via open, third-party servers

- 10. Sending emails to users who have requested to be removed from a mailing list
- 11. Selling, exchanging or distributing to a third party the email addresses of any person without such person's knowing and continued consent to such disclosure
- 12. Sending unsolicited emails to significant numbers of email addresses belonging to individuals and/or entities with whom you have no preexisting relationship
- 13. Send, upload, distribute or disseminate or offer to do the same with respect to any unlawful, defamatory, harassing, abusive, fraudulent, infringing, obscene, or otherwise objectionable content
- 14. Intentionally distribute viruses, worms, defects, Trojan horses, corrupted files, hoaxes, or any other items of a destructive or deceptive nature
- 15. Conduct or forward pyramid schemes and the like
- 16. Transmit content that may be harmful to minors
- 17. Impersonate another person (via the use of an email address or otherwise) or otherwise misrepresent yourself or the source of any email
- 18. Illegally transmit another's intellectual property or other proprietary information without such owner's or licensor's permission
- 19. Use distribution lists to violate the legal rights (such as rights of privacy and publicity) of others
- 20. Promote or encourage illegal activity
- 21. Create multiple user accounts in connection with any violation of these policies or create user accounts by automated means or under false or fraudulent pretenses
- 22. Sell, trade, resell or otherwise exploit for any unauthorized commercial purpose or transfer your account
- 23. Modify, adapt, translate, or reverse engineer any portion of the service
- 24. Remove any copyright, trademark or other proprietary rights notices contained in or on the service
- 25. Reformat or frame any portion of the web pages that are part of the service
- 26. Use the distribution lists in connection with illegal peer-to-peer file sharing

Appendix 2 Parks

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE UNIVERSITY OF THE SOUTH AND SEWANEE CIVIC ASSOCIATION

University has provided unimproved land free of charge for the purpose of a community dog park near Lake Cheston in exchange for SCA's agreement with the Phil White Dog Park (DP) for the latter to construct, fence, maintain, operate and manage the park for the safe and efficient use of the park by the public.

In consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

- TERM/TERMINATION. This MOU is for a period of two (2) years beginning on the date inserted above
 and may be renewed upon terms mutually agreeable to the parties. The parties may mutually agree to
 terminate this MOU at any time. Failure to comply with the terms of this MOU may result in termination
 of this MOU and closure of the dog park.
- 2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES:
- A. SCA agrees to the following action items for the DP (via a sub-MOU) to:
 - Maintain grounds inside and immediately surrounding Dog Park with mowing, leaf removal, maintenance of ground cover, and filling of holes as needed.
 - Facilitate the removal of any feces inside the fenced areas in a timely manner and encourage dog owners/handlers to do the same. Refill the Doggie Potty Bag Dispensers as needed.
 - 3. Install and maintain fencing and other improvements.
 - 4. Prominently display the rules and regulations for the dog park.
 - 5. Maintain a point of contact to field comments, questions and complaints.
 - 6. Remove trash from area as needed.
 - 7. Pay for water service and maintain service for animal watering.
 - Complete a semi- annual walk-through with the Domain Manager or designee for the purpose of verifying adherence to maintenance routine.
 - Concurrent with this MOU, SCA will immediately execute an up-to-date sub-agreement with the Phil White Dog Park (DP) to implement the tasks, 1-8, delineated above.
- B. University agrees to the following:
 - 1. Continue to clear area of brush and shrubs in a mutually agreeable manner.

Continue to maintain freeze proof water hydrant, meter and lines for water at park.

(Service to meter and payment for water is responsibility of DP.)

- Complete semi-annual walk-through with the SCA for the purpose of verifying adherence to maintenance routine and make any changes necessary to work plan for needed maintenance.
- Permit the aforementioned sub-agreement (MOU) between the SCA and DP to execute tasks delineated in 1-8 above.
- 3. NOTICE OF DEFAULT. Should either party fail to perform on any of the Responsibilities of the Parties listed in paragraph 2, written notice shall be given to non performing party and that party shall have 30 days to correct the problems. Corrective action shall be confirmed with walk through inspection at the end of 30 days. Should problems not be corrected in a mutually satisfactory manner, the dog park will be closed and the MOU terminated. Notice of default shall be mailed or hand-delivered to:

University:

Domain Manager, University of the South, 735 University Ave, Sewanee, TN 37383.

Sewanee Civic Association:

President of SCA, P.O. Box 222, Sewanee, TN 37375

- 4. RÉLATIONSHIP. Neither SCA nor any SCA member or volunteer will for any purpose be considered employees or agents of the University. SCA assumes full responsibility for the actions of SCA's members and volunteers and is solely responsible for their supervision and control. This MOU does not constitute a lease or establish a landlord-tenant relationship; nor does it convey any interest in real property.
- 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. As a material part of the consideration to the University, SCA agrees to assume all risks of loss from any cause and waives all claims against the University. SCA further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the University, its trustees, regents, officers, agents, insurers and employees, against all claims, suits, liabilities, costs, damages and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) arising out of or in connection with the dog park except loss caused by the University's sole negligence.
- 6. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this MOU shall not affect the validity, legality, or enforceability of any of the other provisions of this MOU which shall remain effective.
- APPLICABLE LAW. This MOU and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee.
- AUTHORITY. The individual signing below on behalf of SCA hereby represents and warrants that s/he is duly authorized to execute this MOU on behalf of SCA and that this MOU is binding upon SCA in accordance with its terms.

THE UNIVERSITY OF THE SOUTH

SEWANEE CIVIC ASSOCIATION

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE UNIVERSITY OF THE SOUTH AND SEWANEE CIVIC ASSOCIATION

	This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) made this day of
	, 2015 by and between the University of the South (University) and the
Sewa	nee Civic Association (SCA).

University has provided improved/site ready land free of charge for the purpose of a community playground at Elliott Park in exchange for SCA's agreement to construct and oversee the playground for the safe and efficient use of the equipment by the public.

In consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. <u>TERM/TERMINATION</u>. This MOU is for a period of five (5) years beginning on the date noted above and may be renewed upon terms mutually agreeable to the parties. The parties may mutually agree to terminate this MOU at any time. Failure to comply with the terms of this MOU may result in termination of this MOU and closure of the playground.

2. **RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES**:

- A. SCA agrees to the following action items:
 - 1. Inspect, periodically, grounds inside the playground boundary. Take immediate action on minor items or notify PPS for more extensive action.
 - 2. Prominently display the rules and regulations for the playground.
 - 3. Maintain a point of contact to field comments, questions, and complaints.
 - 4. Provide, at SCA expense, upon request from PPS, appropriate material (e.g. engineered wood fiber) to refresh the playground surface. Make available to PPS for their application.
 - 5. Complete a semi-annual walk-through with the Grounds Manager or designee.

University: Provost, University of the South, 735 University Avenue,

Sewanee, Tennessee 37383

Sewanee Civic Association: President of SCA, P.O. Box 222, Sewanee,

Tennessee 37375

4. **RELATIONSHIP.** Neither SCA nor any SCA member or volunteer will for any purpose be considered employees or agents of the University. SCA assumes full responsibility for the actions of SCA's members and volunteers and is solely responsible for their supervision and control. This MOU does not constitute a lease or establish a landlord-tenant relationship; nor does it convey any interest in real property.

- 5. <u>INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS.</u> As a material part of the consideration to the University, SCA agrees to assume all risks of loss from any cause and waives all claims against the University. SCA further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the University, its trustees, regents, officers, agents, insurers and employees, against all claims, suits, liabilities, costs, damages and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) arising out of or in connection with the playground except loss caused by the University's sole negligence.
- 6. **SEVERABILITY.** The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this MOU shall not affect the validity, legality, or enforceability of any of the other provisions of this MOU which shall remain effective.
- 7. **APPLICABLE LAW.** This MOU and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Tennessee.
- 8. <u>AUTHORITY</u>. The individual signing below on behalf of SCA hereby represents and warrants that she/he is duly authorized to execute this MOU on behalf of SCA and that this MOU is binding upon SCA in accordance with its terms.

THE UNIVERSITY OF THE SOUTH	SEWANEE CIVIC ASSOCIATION
BY:	BY:
JOHN SWALLOW, PROVOST	AUTHORIZED OFFICER

Appendix 3 Opportunity Fund

March 12, 2009 minutes

Sewanee Civic Association Community Chest Opportunity Fund 90 percent in an endowment and 10 percent in a reserve fund.

The interest from the endowment fund will be re-invested into the fund as an annual investment.

The opportunity fund cannot be divested unless there is a two-thirds majority vote from dues paying members. Any future budget surpluses will be rolled into the Sewanee Civic Association Community Chest Opportunity Fund going forward.

A standing Opportunity Fund Committee will be appointed by the president of the Civic Association and should plan to meet not less than yearly.

April 6, 2009 minutes

The Sewanee Civic Association Community Chest Opportunity Fund will be created of our current \$130,000 budgetary surplus. 90% of this amount will be put into an endowment fund and 10% will be designated in a reserve fund. Any future surpluses will be rolled into this fund and distributed likewise, according to the 90/10% model. The interest from the endowment fund will be re-invested into the fund as an annual gift. The Opportunity Fund cannot be divested unless there is a 1/3 vote of dues-paying members present from the Civic Association membership at large. A standing Opportunity Fund Committee will be appointed by the president of the Civic Association and will meet no less than yearly.

Amended: The opportunity fund cannot be divested unless there is a two-thirds vote of those dues-paying members present of the Civic Association at large at a regular meeting. Notice of a proposed vote regarding a potential divestment of the Opportunity Fund should be made public at least two weeks prior to the date of the vote.

May 4, 2009 minutes

Investment committee Bill Harper, Lizzie Duncan, Bill Davis, Nancy Burnett, Jay Fisher, Rick Ball and Doug Williams

Portfolio that generates 4.5% income with an edge to a conservative risk tolerance.